
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 815266 
 

Notice of a Meeting 
 

Strategy & Partnerships Scrutiny Committee 
Thursday, 22 July 2010 at 10.00 am 

County Hall 
Membership 
 

Chairman - Councillor Melinda Tilley 
Deputy Chairman - Councillor Nick Carter 
 

Councillors: Norman Bolster 
Liz Brighouse OBE 

Jean Fooks 
 

Peter Jones 
A.M. Lovatt 

Chip Sherwood 
 

Dr Peter Skolar 
David Wilmshurst 

 

 

Notes:  
Date of next meeting: 30 September 2010 

 

What does this Committee review or scrutinise? 
• Corporate and community leadership; corporate strategies; regional issues 
• Local strategic partnerships and District Council liaison 
• Social inclusion & equality; services for members 
• Finance; procurement; property 
• Culture change and customer focus; human resources; communications strategy; 

information and communications technology 
• The elections and appointments functions of the Democracy & Organisation 

Committee 
• The functions of the Pension Fund Committee 
 

How can I have my say? 
We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities 
of this Committee.  Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda 
or may suggest matters which they would like the Committee to look at.  Requests to 
speak must be submitted to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am on the 
working day before the date of the meeting. 
 

For more information about this Committee please contact: 
 
Chairman - Councillor Melinda Tilley 
  E.Mail: melinda.tilley@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
Committee Officer - Sue Whitehead, Tel: (01865) 810262 

sue.whitehead@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Tony Cloke  
Assistant Head of Legal & Democratic Services July 2010 

Public Document Pack



 

 

About the County Council 
The Oxfordshire County Council is made up of 74 councillors who are democratically 
elected every four years. The Council provides a range of services to Oxfordshire’s 
630,000 residents. These include: 
 
schools social & health care libraries and museums 
the fire service roads  trading standards 
land use  transport planning waste management 
 

Each year the Council manages £0.9 billion of public money in providing these services. 
Most decisions are taken by a Cabinet of 9 Councillors, which makes decisions about 
service priorities and spending. Some decisions will now be delegated to individual 
members of the Cabinet. 
 
About Scrutiny 
 
Scrutiny is about: 
• Providing a challenge to the Cabinet 
• Examining how well the Cabinet and the Authority are performing  
• Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people 
• Helping the Cabinet to develop Council policies 
• Representing the community in Council decision making  
• Promoting joined up working across the authority’s work and with partners 
 
Scrutiny is NOT about: 
• Making day to day service decisions 
• Investigating individual complaints. 
 
What does this Committee do? 
The Committee meets up to 6 times a year or more. It develops a work programme, 
which lists the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole 
committee investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of 
members doing research and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting.  Once an 
investigation is completed the Committee provides its advice to the Cabinet, the full 
Council or other scrutiny committees. Meetings are open to the public and all reports are 
available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items would be 
considered in closed session 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print 
version of these papers or special access facilities) please 
contact the officer named on the front page, giving as much 
notice as possible before the meeting  

A hearing loop is available at County Hall. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

2. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note on the back page  
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meetings held on 27 May 2010 (SYP3) and to note for 
information any matters arising on them. 

 

4. Speaking to or petitioning the Committee  
 

5. Director's Update  
10.10 am 

 The Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer will give a verbal update on 
key issues. 

 

SCRUTINY MATTERS 
To consider matters where the Committee can provide a challenge 

to the work of the Authority 

6. Shared Services Programme - Completion (Pages 7 - 12) 
10.25 am 

 In 2006 the Cabinet decided to implement Shared Services following a detailed 
business case proposal. 
 
Adopting Shared Services offered both financial and service quality improvements to 
Oxfordshire County Council by consolidating Human Resources, Financial Services 
and Financial and Management Accounting services. 
 
In April 2010 Shared Services were able to report full delivery of the programme's 
objectives and targets. 
 
This report provides a short summary of the project rationale, major challenges and 
achievements.   
 
The Strategy and Partnerships Committee is invited to consider the success and 
continued improvement demonstrated by Shared Services in reducing resource 
expenditure and improving processes to support directorate and council 
outcomes. 
  



- 2 - 
 

 

7. Financial Monitoring 2010/11 - Quarter 1 (Pages 13 - 32) 
10.35 am 

 Quarterly financial report on revenue and capital spending against budget allocations.  
 

REVIEW WORK 
To take evidence, receive progress updates and consider tracking reports. 

8. Scrutiny of Partnerships  
10.50 am 

(a) Oxfordshire's Thematic Partnerships: Review of Performance and 
Governance (Pages 33 - 36) 

  Update for information from the Head of Partnerships Working (SYP8a) 
  

(b) Children's Trust  

 To undertake a Select Committee of the work/governance of the Children’s Trust 
to explore partnership working through the Children's Trust and to look at ways in 
which this can be strengthened in the future.  
 
There will be a short presentation from officers followed by a question and answer 
session. 
 
Councillor Louise Chapman, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & 
Families, will attend as Chairman of the Children’s Trust Board. The following will 
also be in attendance: 
 
Meera Spillett, Director of Children, Young People & Families 
Paula Tansley, Interim Head of Commissioning, Performance and Quality 

Assurance 
Jan Paine, Head of Service - Southern Area, Young People & Access to 

Education 
Sally Taylor, Head of Northern Area, Raising Achievement 
Jim Leivers, Interim Head of Service for Children and Families 
Sian Rodway, Strategic Lead, Performance 
Sarah Breton, Strategic Lead & Head of Joint Commissioning 
 
 

  

BUSINESS PLANNING 
To consider future work items for the Committee 

9. Forward Plan  
12.00 pm 

 The Committee is asked to suggest items from the current Forward Plan on which it 
may wish to have an opportunity to offer advice to the Cabinet before any decision is 
taken, together with details of which it thinks could be achieved by looking at any item. 



- 3 - 
 

 

 

INFORMATION SHARE 
No items have been listed by the date of publication of the agenda. 
 

12.10 pm Close of Meeting  
 



- 4 - 
 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Part 9.1 of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, ie where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 
 
 



 

STRATEGY & PARTNERSHIPS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 27 May 2010 commencing at 10.00 am 
and finishing at 1.30 pm 
 
Present: 
 

 

Voting Members: Councillor Melinda Tilley – in the Chair 
 

 Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor Liz Brighouse OBE 
Councillor Nick Carter 
Councillor Jean Fooks 
Councillor Peter Jones 
Councillor A.M. Lovatt 
 Councillor Peter Skolar 
Councillor Melinda Tilley (Deputy Chairman) 
Councillor David Wilmshurst 
 

Other Members in 
Attendance: 
 

Councillor Keith R. Mitchell CBE (for Agenda Item 9) 
Councillor Jim Couchman (for Agenda Item 12) 
 

Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting  G. K. Malcolm (Corporate Core) 
 

Part of meeting 
 

 

Agenda Item Officer Attending 
7,8,9 S. Capaldi (Corporate Core) 
8,13 P. James (Corporate Core) 
10 A. Bailey (Corporate Core) 
11 J. Clark (Corporate Core) 
12 A. Ulusoy-Shipstone & L. Baxter (Corporate Core) 
 
The Scrutiny Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations 
contained or referred to in the agenda for the and agreed as set out below.  Copies 
of the agenda and reports are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 
 

13 ELECTION OF THE CHAIRMAN FOR THE 2010/11 COUNCIL YEAR  
(Agenda No. 1) 
 
RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Skolar, seconded by Councillor Brighouse 
and carried nem. con.) that Councillor Melinda Tilley be elected Chairman for the 
2010/11 Council Year.  
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



SYP3 

14 ELECTION OF THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN FOR THE 2010/11 COUNCIL 
YEAR  
(Agenda No. 2) 
 
RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Skolar, seconded by Councillor Bolster and 
carried nem. con.) that Councillor Nick Carter be elected Deputy Chairman for the 
2010/11 Council Year.  
 

15 MINUTES  
(Agenda No. 5) 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2010 (SYP5) were approved and 
signed. 
 
Minute 8/10 Financial Monitoring Review 
 
point one-Councillor Carter asked what progress had been made.  Officers undertook 
to respond following the conclusion of the meeting.   
 
point 7-the Chairman would consider as part of agenda planning inviting the Head of 
ICT to the July 2010 meeting. 
 
Minute 10/10 Partnerships 
 
Officers reported that the Annual Report was not yet available.   
Ms Bailey undertook to circulate to Committee members the dates of Partnership 
meetings.  
 

16 DIRECTOR'S UPDATE  
(Agenda No. 7) 
 
Mr. Capaldi, Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy) gave an oral update which included 
the following key issues: 

• work on the Council’s ICT Corporate Strategy; 
• Customer Service Centre development; 
• Partnership Review - outcomes would be brought to the Public Service Board 

and to this Committee; 
• Legal Services – the impact of the growth of safeguarding work in Children’s 

Services.  
 
The Committee AGREED to note the report.  
 

17 CLOSER TO COMMUNITIES STRATEGY / LOCALITY WORKING  
(Agenda No. 8) 
 
Mr. James, Head of Partnership Working introduced the report (SYP8) which 
summarised the aims of the first area ‘summit’ at Didcot on 26 March 2010 and 
feedback from the event.  It also set out the proposed timetable for future events.  He 
then responded, with Mr. Capaldi to members’ questions and comments on the main 
points emerging from the Didcot event and shaping the programme of future events.   

Page 2



SYP3 

 
The importance of early planning of each event and the role of local member/s was 
recognised.   
 
The Committee AGREED to note the briefing and thanked Mr. James and colleagues 
for their work.   
 

18 SUMMARY OF RECENT ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE COALITION 
GOVERNMENT  
(Agenda No. 9) 
 
Mr. Capaldi, Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy) introduced the report (SYP9).  He 
informed members that much of the information had been overtaken by events 
including the Government’s proposed legislative programme.   
 
Councillor Mitchell, Leader of the Council then gave an oral update on key 
developments at the national level including the Government’s intention to abolish 
Regional Spatial Strategies, to revoke the South East Plan and to devolve power and 
greater financial autonomy to local government and community groups.  It was too 
soon to identify the detailed implications of these and other proposals for Oxfordshire.  
He was keeping in touch with Government Ministers with regard to the Council’s role 
in leading the South East out of recession.   
 
The Committee AGREED to note the position and thanked Councillor Mitchell for his 
update.  
 

19 SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT  
(Agenda No. 10) 
 
Ms. Bailey, Corporate Performance & Review Manager introduced the draft Scrutiny 
Annual Report 2009-2010 (SYP10).  She confirmed that the draft  was ‘work in 
progress’, that the ‘Foreword’ by the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive would 
be included and that the ‘Introduction’ by Councillor Skolar had been received. 
 
The Committee then considered the draft Report.  Key comments arising during 
debate included: 

• support for the use of plain English; 
• deletion of the type box at the foot of page 7; 
• consistency in providing the sources of quotations; and 
• updating the data where necessary.   

 
20 COMMUNICATION STRATEGY  

(Agenda No. 11) 
 
Mr. Clark, Head of Communications, Marketing & Public Affairs informed members 
that the  Communications Strategy had not been published yet.  It would be brought 
to the Committee’s next meeting; Members asked to receive it as early as possible. 
 
 

Page 3



SYP3 

In response to questions and comments about the Internal Communications team, he 
confirmed that the process for the appointment of a Communications Planning Officer 
was under way.  The Team currently consisted of three permanent and two 
temporary staff.     
 
The Committee AGREED to note the position and thanked Mr. Clark for his report.   
 

21 CAPITAL UPDATE  
(Agenda No. 12) 
 
The Committee considered a report (SYP12) which informed members about the 
agreed Capital Programme 2010/11 to 2014/15.   
 
Ms Ulusoy-Shipstone, Capital Programme Manager introduced the report and gave a 
presentation on the Programme.  She drew members’ attention in particular to 
paragraphs 6 and 7 which outlined new additions and amendments to the proposed 
programme and gave details of deleted / reduced allocations.   
 
Councillor Jim Couchman, Cabinet Member for Finance & Procurement commented 
that it was likely that the Council’s capital budget would need to be re-examined in 
the light of Government proposals.  Members sought information about the position 
of, for example, a contractually committed Sure Start scheme.  The detailed position 
was not known at the moment.  Members asked Councillor Couchman to support 
where possible the inclusion of such a scheme in the Capital Programme.   
 
The Committee AGREED to note the report  and presentation and thanked  
Ms Ulusoy-Shipstone and Councillor Couchman.    
 

22 PARTNERSHIPS  
(Agenda No. 13) 
 
Mr James, Head of Partnership Working updated the Committee on the review which 
was under way of  the effectiveness of the new partnership governance 
arrangements put in place last year.  Work was ongoing to rationalise terms of 
reference, membership and accountability of the joint working arrangements.  There 
could also be possible issues for partnership working arising from the Government’s 
intentions regarding for example economic development, planning, housing and 
education.   
 
The Committee AGREED: 
 
(a) to support an element of co-ordination in relation to member visits to 

partnership body meetings; and  
 

(b) that the scrutiny role should focus on outcomes. 
 
(See also Forward Plan – Future Business - below).   
 
 

Page 4



SYP3 

23 FORWARD PLAN  
(Agenda No. 14) 
 
Forward Plan 
 
No items from the current Forward Plan were identified for scrutiny. 
 
Future Business 
 
Scrutiny of Partnership Arrangements:   
 

The Chairman undertook to consider as part of the agenda setting process the 
Committee’s scrutiny of partnerships  including timing, priorities, focus and process. 
 

Members considered that an informal member briefing and suggested questioning 
areas would be helpful prior to the relevant scrutiny meeting.   
 
 
 in the Chair 
  
Date of signing   

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



SYP_22JUL10R03 

Division(s): All 

 
 
Strategy and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee – 22 July 2010 
 

Completion of the Shared Services Implementation 
Programme 

 
Report by Associate Director for Shared Services 

 
 

Introduction 
 

1. Shared Services were able to report, in April 2010, delivery of the full 
financial and service benefits envisaged by the original business case 
developed in 2006. 
 

2. This report provides a summary of the shared services programme, its 
rationale, major challenges and achievements. 

 
The Programme 
 

3. Rationale - From a Finance, Health & Safety and Human Resources 
perspective and before 2007, the organisation was highly devolved, 
resulting in some fragmented processes undertaken by a wide range of 
professional and non-professional staff across the Directorates.  
Control and quality of these activities was difficult to establish and the 
existing structure was relatively expensive.  In addition to driving up 
service standards and reducing costs, Shared Services offered an 
ability to ensure that consistent, professional standards of support were 
available across the organisation. 
 

4. Business Case – In 2006 a commissioned business case set out the 
potential benefits available from Shared Services, articulated the costs 
and qualitative benefits of implementation and proposed a method of 
implementation.   
Cabinet approved the proposals in February 2006.  
  

5. Implementation Plan - In July 2006 the Head of Service was recruited 
and his arrival led to changes in terms of programme team, 
implementation and accommodation.   
 - The Head of Service assumed responsibility and direct control for the 
programme and programme team.   
 - Implementation was changed from re-engineering processes before 
transfer, to one where teams of the required size were co-located and 
processes then re-engineered to deliver the required improvements in 
productivity and capacity. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



SYP6 

 - selection and equipment of a building that met the business needs of 
the service. 
These changes directly contributed to achievement of the programmes 
objectives. 
 

6. Programme progress - Suitable accommodation was identified at 
Unipart House and teams were moved in 3 waves, commencing 
January 2007.  The full complement originally numbered around 300 
FTE (360 complement). 
 

7. Delivery of the financial and qualitative benefits was achieved by ; 
 - re-engineering business processes so that customer needs were 
met,             
- applying technology wherever possible, which enabled solutions 
 - employing fewer people to run the processes.  

 
8. To support service delivery, a comprehensive set of performance 

indicators were developed and adopted to manage processes. 
 
9. To support customer services a comprehensive set of ‘service level 

agreements’ were established that defined the specific levels of service 
that would be delivered and the contributions necessary from both 
Shared Services and the customer.   

 
Financial and Staff Implications 
 

10. Staff Implications – Development of shared services represented a 
significant change programme.  It changed the way Directorates and 
Services would be supported, the way in which managers would carry 
out their roles, the roles of individuals within the new teams, their 
working practices and where they were located.  Those staff that 
represented the resources not required by Shared Services, (circa 134 
FTE) had to be re-deployed within the organisation to meet the 
requirement that no or very few redundancies would be caused by the 
programme. 

 
11. These issues were addressed by a comprehensive strategy;  

 - a comprehensive communications programme, primarily focused 
upon those affected by the changes, providing  progress reports as 
major milestones were reached, e.g. acquisition of suitable premises.   
 - as each wave of personnel was transferred, consultative groups were 
established to ensure the working environment was properly 
established and moving arrangements properly communicated. 
 - a Job Finder function was established and funded by the programme.  
This supported the re-deployment of staff displaced by the changes.   
 - to address transport issues caused by the new location, discussions 
with local bus companies secured improvements in services and a 
shuttle for business purposes was established to link Unipart House to 
the central offices. 
- once established within the new service, staff were supported by 

Page 8



SYP6 

regular ‘snapshot’ meetings, a regular electronic newsletter and a 
monthly Core Brief focusing on business issues.  
 - staff representative groups were established to resolve domestic 
issues as they were identified. 

 
12. These initiatives appear to have been successful.  Turnover within 

Shared Services is at a lower rate than else where in the County 
Council.  Of 134 FTE displaced by the programme, 8 redundancies 
were created.  Of the remainder they were either re-deployed into 
vacancies across the County Council or left for employment 
opportunities elsewhere.  

  
13. Financial Implications – To deliver the savings targeted by the 

business case, an accurate picture of current costs and their location 
within the organisation was required so that position statements for 
each directorate could be negotiated.  As the outcome represented the 
budget individual directorates would lose to either Shared Services or 
Savings, agreement in many cases proved difficult to achieve. 

 
14. The original Business Case estimated the value of resources in each 

directorate.  Making changes based upon this data was challenging 
and in many cases, changes within directorates made the estimates 
increasingly out of date.  In response, the programme re-calculated 
costs cross referenced to specific posts and individuals.  Agreement on 
budget transfers was then possible with directorates. 

 
15. This also allowed a financial benefits model to be constructed to 

support tracking and reporting mechanisms that reported delivery of 
100% of the targeted savings in April 2010. 

 
16. Original projections for the costs of implementation were £6.050m in 

2006, actual costs were £5.3m (88%). 
 
17. Gross Savings total £4.6m pa and after taking into account additional 

running and repaying implementation costs, the programme will have 
returned a net £11.87m to the County Council by March 2015.  Savings 
continue thereafter at £2.47m pa. 
 

18. Customer Service 
 
The development of ‘service level agreements’ enabled the approach 
to customer service to be transparent and measured.  Regular 
performance reviews take place on a face to face basis with each 
directorate. 
 

19. Service levels are measured by a comprehensive set of ‘key 
performance indicators’.  These measure key areas of activity for each 
area of service and have been established and developed in close co-
operation with our customers.  They are given a high profile throughout 
shared services, displayed on notice boards and regularly referred to in 

Page 9



SYP6 

communications with staff and enable a totally objective assessment of 
all areas of shared service to be made. 
 

20. The approach to customer service is underpinned by a customer 
complaint and compliment process, which supports the resolution of 
specific issues and ensures process are refined in the light of 
experience. 

 
21. Customer Satisfaction is a key indicator within the performance 

indicator set.  The target is 91%, current performance is shown as 
94%.  
 

22. Continuous Improvement 
 
Shared Service operations are consolidated into one geographic 
location and are process intensive, offering the potential to seek 
continuous improvement and deliver benefits in addition to those 
envisaged by the original business case.  
 

23 A small team was established to lead this activity.  Initially focused 
upon work to deliver key aspects of the programme, there are now 19 
separate projects running within shared Services focused on the 
delivery of additional financial savings of £501k (excluding inflation as 
this is factored into the overall savings requirement), required by the 
Council’s efficiency savings strategy. 

 
24 These further savings represent a significant challenge at 11% of the 

savings already delivered.  Work is underway to progress this and 
reported to the Shared Services Leadership Team on a monthly basis. 
 
Major Challenges 
 

23. A programme of this complexity produces a wide range of challenges 
to be addressed and running over 3 or more years provides many 
opportunities for unforeseen issues to materialise.  

 
26. Examples are offered by the re-alignment of CYPF and Social 

Services, more recently the focus on criminal record bureau checks 
created a significant increase in the numbers of applications 
processed.   

 
27. The level of performance recorded by key performance indicator 

returns show that of 128 indicators, 113 are currently equal to or above 
target, providing good evidence that the Shared Services team has 
addressed the challenges of implementation effectively.  
 
Achievements 
 

28. Delivery of the programmes prime objectives is detailed above.  In 
addition, the most significant achievements of the programme are 

Page 10



SYP6 

regarded as; 
 
 - maintenance of all services during implementation. 
 - successful harmonisation of service and professional levels of 
support across the County Council, including some areas where little 
was provided previously. 
 - developing a significant cultural shift which focuses upon 
performance management and customer service. 
 - delivering, by comparison with other public sector shared service 
operations, one of the most comprehensive and effective organisations 
of its type. 
 

29. Above all the programme has delivered an organisation capable of 
delivering additional benefits.  There is for example, scope to transfer 
further ‘non core’ services to Shared Services, enabling both strategic 
and operational areas of the county council to have an improved focus 
on their core role and in doing so, improve effectiveness and efficiency. 

 
30. In 2009 further teams, Food with Thought (schools meal service), QCS 

(soft FM Services to OCC and Schools and the QuEST Business Unit 
(enables the provision of £14m OCC support services to schools), 
transferred to Shared Services from CYPF.  Recent comment from 
those teams reflects the benefits of locating non core services correctly 
within the organisation.  ‘Since our arrival support through all 
departments has improved and we feel part of a much wider 
organisation………. part of a team that is performance driven and 
continually seeks to improve their performance.  QuEST is now… able 
to work closely with Shared Services teams, helping us form valuable 
relationships with teams and enabling us to provide a better quality 
service to our customers.”  ’    
In total these services added a further 336 FTE to the Shared Services 
complement. 
 
  
RECOMMENDATION 

 
31. The Strategy and Partnerships Committee is invited to consider 

the success and continued improvement demonstrated by Shared 
Services in reducing resource expenditure and improving 
processes to support directorate and council outcomes. 

 
 
NAME :  J Parry 
   Associate Director for Shared Services 
 
Background papers:  Previous reports to this committee 
Contact Officer:  David Lines  
 
Manager Business Development 797193  david.lines@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
   

Page 11



SYP6 

 
July 2010 
 
  

Page 12



 

 

 
STRATEGY AND PARTNERSHIPS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
22 July 2010 

 
PROVISIONAL OUTTURN OVERVIEW 

  
COMMENTARY BY THE CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE 

 
 
 

Introduction 
 

1. The last report to Strategy and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee on 4 
March 2010 gave an overview of Financial Monitoring to the end of 
December 2009.  This report looks at the movement from the end of 
December to the year end position at the end of March 2010 as reported to 
Cabinet in the Provisional Outturn Report on 22 June. 

 
2. The full Provisional Outturn Report to Cabinet and the Directorate reports 

are available in the members’ resource centre.  Annex 1 from the 
Provisional Outturn Report which sets out the outturn position for each 
directorate and proposed carry forwards to 2010/11 is included at Annex 1 
to this report. 

 
3. The year end position for 2009/10 is summarised below. 
 
 

Original 
Budget 
2009/10 
£m 

 Latest 
Budget 
2009/10 
£m 

Provisional 
Outturn 
2009/10 
£m 

Variance 
to Latest 
Budget 
£m 

Variance 
to Latest 
Budget 
% 

373.042 Revenue (*) 378.836 377.015 -1.821 -0.48 
100.444 Capital 101.913 93.996 -7.917 -7.77 
12.463 General 

Balances  
10.5001 11.145 +0.645 +6.14 

58.2912 Reserves  36.7523 60.764 +24.012 +65.33% 
 
 
4. The movement in the in – year Directorate forecast overspend over the 

four months from December 2009 to year end is shown in the table on the 
following page. 

 
 

                                                 
1 Per the Chief Finance Officer’s Commentary on the 2010/11 – 2014/15 budget considered 
by Council on 9 February 2010. 
2 Per Service & Resource Planning – Financial Plan 2009/10 – 2013/14 
3 Per February 2010 Financial Monitoring Report to Cabinet on 20 April 2010. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



SYP7 

 

 

 

(*) Throughout the report a minus sign represents an underspend 
compared to the final approved budget and a positive sign 
indicates an overspend.  
 

Directorate Dec  
2009 

Variance 
 

£m 

Jan 
2010 

Variance 
 

£m 

Feb 
2010 

Variance 
 

£m 

March 
2010 

Variance 
 

£m 
Children, Young People & Families 4 +1.046 +1.263 +0.793 -0.775 
Social & Community Services  +0.478 +0.798 +0.772 +0.736 
Environment & Economy +0.482 +0.344 +0.149 -0.406 
Community Safety & Shared 
Services +0.049 -0.340 -0.494 -0.805 

Corporate Core +2.250 +2.394 +2.399 -0.571 
Total Directorate in-year forecast 
over / under spend 

+4.305 +4.459 +3.619 -1.821 

 
 
Part 1 – Provisional Revenue Outturn 

 
Summary 

5. The provisional Directorate revenue outturn was a net underspend of   
-£1.821m, or a -0.48% variation to the final approved budget of 
£378.836m.  The year end revenue position for 2009/10 can be 
summarised as follows: 

 
2009/10 Gross 

Expenditure 
£m 

Income 
 

£m 

Net 
Expenditure 

£m 
Original Budget 
Brought forward from 2008/09 
Virements & Grant Changes 
Supplementary Estimates 

853.575 
2.428 
15.245 
3.670 

-480.533 
0.000 

-15.764 
0.215 

373.042 
2.428 
-0.519 
3.885 

Final Approved Budget 
Provisional Outturn 

874.918 
946.193 

-496.082 
-568.341 

378.836 
377.852 

Total Variation 
Less items funded  
corporately from balances  
Less City Schools 
Reorganisation  

+71.275 
 

-0.062 
 

-0.775 

-72.259 
 

0.000 
 

0.000 

-0.984 
 

-0.062 
 

-0.775 
Directorate Variation  +70.438 -72.259 -1.821 

 
6. For comparison the Directorate revenue variation at the end of 2008/09 

was -£2.119m and represented -0.57% of the budget.   
 

 
 
 

                                                 
4 Excluding £0.775m City Schools re-organisation overspend 

Page 14



SYP7 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Directorate Variations  

7. The Directorate outturn of -£1.821m compares to a forecast overspend of 
+£4.305m in the Financial Monitoring Report to the end of December 
2009, a change of   -£6.126m.  Of that -£3.510m, reflects Supplementary 
Estimates requested or approved after the end of December 2009.  
Explanations of the major variances from budget for each Directorate are 
provided in the subsequent paragraphs.   

 

Original 
Budget 
2009/10 

Directorate Latest 
Budget 
2009/10 

Provisional 
Outturn 
Variance 
2009/10 

Forecast 
Variance 

December 
2009 

Outturn 
Variance 

 

£m  £m £m £m  %  
98.277 

 
 

Children, Young 
People & 
Families  

97.288 -0.775 +1.046 -0.80 

166.800 
 
Social & 
Community 
Services  

167.145 +0.736 +0.478 +0.44 

 
68.631 

Environment & 
Economy 71.229 -0.406 +0.482 -0.57 

 
29.908 

Community 
Safety & Shared 
Services 

 
30.598 

 
-0.805 +0.049 -2.63 

9.426 Corporate Core 12.576 -0.571 +2.250 -4.54 
373.042 Total 378.8365 -1.821 +4.305 -0.48 

      
 Plus:  
Plus: City Schools 
Reorganisation  

 
+0.775 

 
+0.775 

 

 Plus: Reallocation of 
Dedicated Schools Grant 

 
+3.322  

 ICT Refresh  +1.200  
 Total 

Provisional Outturn variation  
-1.046 +9.602  

      
 Memorandum Accounts:    
 Older People, Physical 
Disabilities & Equipment 
Pooled Budget  

 
+2.1066 

 
+8.237 

 

 Learning Disabilities Pooled 
Budget -0.101 +0.901  

 

                                                 
5 Latest Budget includes virements and supplementary estimates approved by Cabinet and 
Council in-year. 
6 +£0.790m of this, relating to the overspend on the Council elements, is in included in the 
outturn variance for Social & Community Services shown above.  The balance is the 
responsibility of Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust (PCT). 

Page 15



SYP7 

 

 

 

8. Requests for carry forwards of under and overspends within the final 
variance were agreed by Cabinet on 22 June.  Carry forwards in Children, 
Young People & Families and Social & Community Services dependent on 
virements greater than £0.5m will be considered by Council on 27 July.  

Children, Young People & Families (CYP&F): in - year Directorate 
underspend of -£0.775m (-0.8% of the final budget) 

 

 Final 
Approved 
Budget 
2009/10 

Provisional 
Outturn 
Variance 

Variation 
to Final 

Approved 
Budget 

 December 
2009 

Variance 

Change 
since 

December 

 £m £m %  £m £m 
Young People and 
Access to Education 23.817 -0.398 -1.67  +0.435 -0.833 

Children & Families 27.665 +3.252 +11.75  +4.596 -1.344 
Raising Achievement 
Service 9.717 -0.923 -9.50  +0.203 -1.126 

Commissioning, 
Performance & 
Quality Assurance 

36.985 -0.604 -1.63  -0.866 +0.262 

Schools -0.896 -1.3277 +148.00  +0.775 -2.102 
Annex 1 Total 97.288 0.000 0.00  +5.143 -5.143 
Less Reallocation of 
Dedicated Schools 
Grant 

    -3.322 +3.322 

Less City Schools 
Reorganisation  -0.775   -0.775 0.000 

Total 97.288 -0.775 -0.775  +1.046 -1.821 
 
9. As indicated to Cabinet during the year the final position included the use 

of £2.101m Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), along with contributions from 
reserves of £1.523m.   Whilst this funding was one off, the ongoing 
pressures, predominantly in Children & Families, have been considered 
and addressed as part of the 2010/11 budget agreed by Council on 9 
February 2010.  

 
10. The Outturn position includes the impact of the allocation of the unutilised 

element of the Dedicated Schools Grant.  This had a balance of £3.322m 
at the end of December 2009.  

 
Young People and Access to Education 

11. The total underspend in Young People and Access to Education was         
-£0.398m.  The underspend largely related to Services to Disabled 
Children where one – off backdated rental income was received close to 
year end and residential placement costs were lower than forecast.   

 
12. Connexions (within the Youth Support Service) reported a year-end 

underspend of -£0.188m.  This service is funded through Area Based 

                                                 
7 +£0.775m planned overspend on City Schools Reorganisation less £2.101m Dedicated 
Schools Grant. 

Page 16



SYP7 

 

 

 

Grant so the intention is that the underspend will to be carried forward to 
allow the contractor liability for 2010/11 to be met.   

 
Children & Families 

13. The final outturn variation for Children & Families was an overspend of 
+£3.252m.  This decreased by £0.833m from the position reported to the 
Strategy and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee in March.    Of this position 
a net overspend of +£0.172m related to services funded by Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DSG). 

 
14. Within Children & Families the placements budget has been under 

significant pressure due to national changes in practices following the 
Baby P case. During 2009/10 there were a larger number of placements at 
higher average cost.  £0.523m of the carry forward from 2008/09 was 
placed in the CYP&F reserve to offset pressures within the directorate.  
Given that the placements budget was significantly overspent, the reserve 
was applied in this area.  After taking account of the contribution from 
reserves, the remaining overspend reduced from +£1.825m to +£1.246m.     

 
15. In February 2010 Cabinet agreed a supplementary estimate of £0.300m to 

cover the pressures arising from the Southwark Judgement. This offset all 
the pressures arising in 2009/10 relating to the reclassification of existing 
clients.   

 
16. An overspend of +£1.049m was carried forward from 2008/09 in relation to 

the cost of supporting asylum seeking children.   After taking account of 
additional grant funding received in year and the use of reserves an 
overspend of +£0.629m will be carried forward to 2010/11.   It is unclear 
whether the Council will receive any further grant. 

 
Raising Achievement Service 

17. The outturn for the Raising Achievement Service was an underspend of    -
£0.923m.  This related to the Ethnic Minority Achievement Service (EMAS) 
and Oxfordshire Education Business Partnership (OEBP) variances, and 
also the achievement of more income for Oxfordshire Quality Schools 
Association (OQSA).  The underspend of -£0.336m on EMAS related to 
unspent Performance Reward Grant received in 2007/08 and a request to 
carry this forward will be considered by Council on 27 July 2010.    

 
18. Outdoor Education Centres overspent by +£0.142m.  This arose from an 

income shortfall, staffing pressures and increased transport costs.  The 
intention is that the service should be self-financing in future years. 

 
Commissioning Performance & Quality Assurance 

19. The provisional outturn for Commissioning Performance & Quality 
Assurance was an underspend of -£0.604m.   This included an 
underspend of -£1.491m on Home to School Transport.   By 2014/15 of 
the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) the budget for Home to School 
Transport will be £2.5m lower than in 2009/10 as the service meets its 
share of the Council’s savings target.       

 

Page 17



SYP7 

 

 

 

20. An overspend of +£0.399m relating to costs associated with the 
restructuring was brought forward from 2008/09.  At the end of 2009/10 
this had decreased to +£0.304m.  It was proposed to carry forward this 
amount forward until it has been repaid by 2011/12. 

    
21. At year end, there was an underspend on DSG of -£0.991m for which a 

receipt in advance was been made.   
 

Social & Community Services (S&CS): in - year Directorate 
overspend of +£0.736m (+0.44% of the final budget) 

 
Service Area Final 

Approved 
Budget 
2009/10 

Provisional 
Outturn 
Variance 
(Annex 1 
Column 

11) 

Variation 
to Final 

Approved 
Budget 

 December 
2009 

Variance 

Change 
since 

December 

 £m £m %  £m £m 
Community 
Services 12.674 +0.311 +2.45%  +0.449 -0.138 

Adult Social 
Care 129.874 +0.418 +0.32%  +0.002 +0.416 

Major Projects & 
Supporting 
People 

0.541 +0.001 +0.18%  +0.027 -0.026 

Strategy & 
Transformation 24.056 +0.006 +0.02%  0.000 +0.006 

Total  167.145 +0.736 +0.44%  +0.478 +0.258 
 

22. The total overspend for Community Services was +£0.311m.    Within that, 
Adult Learning and the Music Service overspent by +£0.233m and 
+£0.122m respectively.  The reserve of £0.117m has now been fully 
utilised within Adult Learning.   Both services have carried forward their 
overspends which will be recovered in future years as part of a four year 
action plan.  In addition it is expected that the Adult Learning service will 
repay supplementary estimates of £0.181m. 

 
23. An underspend of -£0.372m in Adult Social Care was offset by the 

overspend of +£0.790m on the Council elements of the OP & PD Pooled 
budget taking total overspend on Adult Social Care to +£0.418m.   
+£0.686m of overspend on the Pool will be carried forward and recovered 
within the Pool in 2010/11 subject to Council approval on 27 July.    

 
24. Cabinet agreed that -£0.250m of the underspend should be carried 

forward to fund the transitional costs of the new Alert Service in 2010/11 
and that a further -£0.025m should be carried forward in respect of costs 
related to the Mental Capacity Act.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



SYP7 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
POOLED BUDGETS 

Older People’s & Physical Disabilities Pooled Budget 

25. As shown in the table below the year end position on the Older People’s 
and Physical Disabilities (OP&PD) Pooled budget was an overspend of 
+£2.106m. £0.790m of that is the responsibility of the Council,  +£1.316m 
relates to Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust (PCT).   

Original 
Budget  
2009/10 

£m 

Final  
Budget 
2009/10 

£m 

 Provisional Outturn 
Variance   
2010 
£m 

December 
2009 

Variance 
£m 

Change 
since 

December 
£m 

   OP PD Total Total Total 
  

 OCC Elements      

89.907 88.767 Forecast in-year variance 0.052 0.561 0.613 +2.588 -1.975 

        
  PCT elements      

23.965 
 
 
 

30.451 
 
 

1.129 

Forecast in-year 
variance 
 
Use of Reserve 

3.060 
 
 

-2.010 
 
 

1.050 
 
 

+5.208 
 
 

-4.158 
 
 

113.872 120.347 Total OP&PD 3.112 -1.449 1.663 +7.796 -6.133 
1.657 1.658 Equipment Pool 0.443  0.443 +0.441 +.002 

115.529 122.005 Total -  OP, PD & 
Equipment Pool 3.555 -1.449 2.106 +8.237 +6.131 

 

26. The total overspend on the PCT element of the pool after taking account of 
their share of the Equipment Pool is +£1.316m and has been carried 
forward to form the first call on the PCT contribution in 2010/11.  During 
March 2010 the PCT made an additional contribution of £2.317m to the 
pool, bringing the total additional contributions during 2009/10 to £6.317m.  
However, this was not sufficient to cover the additional expenditure to the 
end of the financial year.  

 
27. As set out in paragraph 23 the total overspend of £0.790m on the Council 

element of the pool was brought into the Services for Older People budget 
in the revenue account which was -£0.372m underspent prior to this 
transfer.   
 
Learning Disabilities Pooled Budget 

28. The year end position on the Learning Disabilities Pooled Budget was an 
underspend of -£0.101m which has been transferred to reserves.    
Efficiencies of £4.274m were achieved by the service in 2009/10 to bring 
the Pool in balance by the year end.     

 

Page 19



SYP7 

 

 

 

Environment & Economy (E&E): in - year Directorate underspend of -
£0.406m (-0.57% of the final budget) 

 
  
11. Following the bad weather over the winter, supplementary estimates of 

£0.475m and £0.425m for repairs to the highway surface and the 
additional costs of winter maintenance were approved by Cabinet on 16 
February 2010 and 20 April 2010.   After taking account of these the year 
end underspend was -£0.098m or -0.23% of the final budget.   Within that 
the variation on the Oxfordshire Highways budget of £25.2m was  
-£0.450m. 

 
12. An underspend of -£0.566m was reported for Sustainable Development.   

 -£0.471m of the underspend related to Waste Management.  This reflects 
a 4% reduction in the absolute tonnages of waste disposed of compared to 
budgeted tonnages at the beginning of the year and an increase in the 
proportion of waste recycled or composted.  

 
29. £0.650m was agreed to be transferred to reserves to support the funding 

of the Waste Recycling Strategy in year.   In addition the £0.695m budget 
set aside for the purchase of Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS) 
credits is also available to support the strategy.     Whilst some of the 
underspend at year end was required to offset variations elsewhere in the 
Directorate a further £0.293m was transferred to the reserve, taking the 
total to £0.943m. 

 
30. The final overspend in Property Services was +£0.119m which included an 

overspend of +£0.225m on the Better Offices Programme.  Previously it 
had been assumed that this would be a call on balances at year end.  
However, due to the overall position across Environment & Economy at 
year end the Directorate managed to absorb this corporate cost on a one 
off basis.  An overspend of +£0.115m on non – domestic rates relating to 
properties across all Directorates was funded from balances in line with 
Council policy.  

 
31. The final overspend of +£0.139m for Business Improvement related to 

increased legal costs and staffing pressures. 
 

Service Area Final 
Approved 
Budget 

Provisional 
Outturn 
Variance 

Variation 
to Final 

Approved 
Budget 

 December 
2009  

    Variance 

Change 
since 

December 

 £m £m %  £m £m 
Transport 41.713 -0.098 -0.23  +0.567 -0.665 
Sustainable 
Development 25.312 -0.566 -2.24  -0.222 -0.344 

Property 
Services -0.906 +0.119 +13.13  -0.004 +0.123 

Business 
Improvement 5.110 +0.139 +2.72  +0.141 -0.002 

Total 71.229 -0.406 -0.57  +0.482 -0.888 

Page 20



SYP7 

 

 

 

 
Community Safety & Shared Services (CS&SS):  in - year Directorate 
underspend of -£0.805m (-2.63% of the final budget) 

 
32. The Fire & Rescue Service underspent by -£0.085m.  Within that the total 

overspend against the retained firefighters’ pay budget was +£0.347m.  
This includes the creation of a provision of £0.225m for the cost of for the 
cost of compensation payments, backdated to July 2000, as a result of an 
of an Employment Tribunal decision with respect to a wide range issues 
affecting payments to retained firefighters.  In previous years any variance 
against this budget for retained firefighters has been drawn from or 
returned to balances on the grounds that the cost of the retained duty 
system is largely driven by the number of emergency call outs.   In 
2009/10 the directorate was able to use underspends totalling -£0.136m to 
cover part of the variance, leaving +£0.211m to be met from balances.   

       
33. The Shared Services project will deliver the net business case saving of 

£11m (2009/10 prices) by November 2014, eight months later than the 
original target.   The forecast includes a provision of £0.140m per annum 
for a business rates revaluation from 2010/11 which was not in the original 
business case but does not include further efficiency savings in the 
2010/11 to 2014/15 Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which will add a 
further £2.2m to cumulative savings by 2013/14.   If these additional 
savings are added, the business target savings will be achieved before the 
March 2014 target.    

 
34. Trading surpluses of £0.343m and £0.076m were achieved by Food with 

Thought and QCS Cleaning.   The Common Hall Café recorded a deficit of 
£0.010m.  The balances have been transferred to the Food with Thought 
Reserve.    

 

 Final 
Approved 
Budget 

Provisional 
Outturn 
Variance 

Variation to 
Final 

Approved 
Budget 

 December  
2009 

Variance 

Change  
since 

December 

 £m £m %  £m £m 
Fire & 
Rescue 23.80 -0.085 -0.36  +0.199 -0.284 

Emergency 
Planning 0.398 -0.035 -8.80  0.000 

 -0.035 

Safer 
Communities 0.900 +0.004 +0.44  -0.020 +0.024 

Gypsy & 
Traveller 
Service 

0.213 -0.074 -34.74  -0.060 -0.014 

Trading 
Standards 2.514 +0.012 +0.48  +0.030 -0.018 

Shared 
Services 2.765 -0.627 -22.68  -0.100 -0.527 

Total 30.598 -0.805 -2.63  +0.049 -0.854 

Page 21



SYP7 

 

 

 

Corporate Core (CC): in - year Directorate underspend of -£0.571m 
(-4.5% of the final net budget or -1.5% variation to the gross budget 
before recharges to other Directorates) 

 
Service Area Final 

Approved 
Budget8 

Provisional 
Outturn 
Variance  

Variation  
to Final 

Approved 
Budget 

 December 
2009 

Variance 

Change 
since  

December 

 £m £m %  £m £m 
Business Support 1.237 -0.031 -2.51%   -0.031 
ICT 2.204 +0.029 1.32%  +2.250 -2.221 
Strategic Human 
Resources & 
Organisational 
Development 

0.320 -0.217 -67.81%   -0.217 

Finance & 
Procurement 0.195 -0.122 -62.56%   -0.122 

Legal & 
Democratic 
Services 

3.247 -0.010 -0.31%   -0.010 

Partnerships 0.180 -0.070 -38.89%   -0.070 
Policy Unit 0.363 -0.122 -33.61%   -0.122 
Communications 
& Marketing 0.184 -0.028 -15.22%   -0.028 

Change Fund 0.226      
Corporate & 
Democratic Core 4.420      

Total 12.576 -0.571 -4.5%  +2.250 -2.821 
 
35. In the last report to the Strategy & Partnerships scrutiny committee in 

March an overspend of £2.250m was reported within ICT.  It was also 
noted in the report that on 22 February 2010 Cabinet had agreed to 
recommend to Council a supplementary estimate of £2.250m for ICT to 
avoid cuts in service at a level that would seriously impact on the resilience 
of the Council’s ICT infrastructure and service delivery.  Council agreed 
the supplementary estimate on 6 April 2010.  Taking this into account the 
final outturn position for ICT was an overspend of +£0.029m.    As agreed 
by the Efficiencies Board the actual redundancy cost of £0.362m were met 
from the Efficiencies Reserve.  An action plan is in place to control costs in 
2010/11.   

 
36. Legal & Democratic Services reported a final underspend position of -

£0.010m.  This position included a supplementary estimate of £0.060m for 
two legal cases each costing over £0.025m which were approved by 
Cabinet on 20 April.    

 

                                                 
8 Budgets are net of recharges to other Directorates. 

Page 22



SYP7 

 

 

 

Proposed Carry Forward of under and over spends in 2009/10 to 
2010/11 

37. Overspends totalling +£2.749m have been carried forward to 2010/11 to 
be recovered as planned.   The total underspend carried forward was  
 -£3.795m.   This is summarised in the table below.  The carry forward 
requests for CYP&F and S&CS depend on virements larger than £0.5m 
which will need to be approved by Council on 27 July 2010 in accordance 
with the Financial Regulations. 

 

Directorate/Service Area Overspends 
to be carried 

forward 
 

£m 

Approved 
underspends 
to be carried 

forward 
£m 

Net total 
requested 

to be 
carried 
forward 

£m 
Children, Young People & Families +0.304 -1.708 -1.404 
Asylum Seekers +0.629  +0.629 
City Schools Reorganisation +0.775  +0.775 
Total CYP&F +1.708 -1.708 0.000 
Social & Community Services  -0.305 -0.305 
Adult Learning +0.233  +0.233 
Music Service +0.122  +0.122 
OP & PD Pooled Budget9 +0.686  +0.686 
Total S&CS +1.041 -0.305 +0.736 
Environment & Economy  -0.406 -0.406 
Community Safety  -0.805 -0.805 
Corporate Core  -0.571 -0.571 
Total (as per Annex 2a) +2.749 -3.795 -1.046 
 

 
Strategic Measures 

38. The year end position on the Strategic Measures budget was an 
underspend of -£0.649m.  This included -£0.442m relating to the interest 
paid on various sums which were included within the Council's cash 
balance. The net underspend has been added to general balances. 

 
39. The Treasury Management Outturn report for 2009/10, which covers all of 

the related activities in detail, was considered by Cabinet on 20 July 2010.  
 

Bad Debt Write Offs 

40. For the year ended 31 March 2010 there were 462 debts written off (as 
recorded on SAP) totalling £0.046m.   Of these the largest write off was 
£13,000 relating to a direct payment which was approved by Cabinet in 
February 2010.  In addition Client Finance wrote off £0.068m in respect of 
115 debts relating to care provided by Social & Community Services.  The 
largest of these debts was £8,763.   Most of the debts have been written 
off because it is uneconomical to recover through the courts.  A further 

                                                 
9 overspend to be carried forward and recovered within the Pool in 2010/11. 

Page 23



SYP7 

 

 

 

write off of £0.111m related to an overpayment to Sedgemoor Children’s 
Services.  Cabinet agreed to write off this debt in January 2010. 

 
41. After taking account of ad hoc write offs of £0.005m, total write offs for the 

year were £0.230m. 
 

Specific & Area Based Grant     

 Specific 
Grants 

 
£m 

Area 
Based 
Grant 
£m 

Grants expected to be received in 2009/10 (as per 
published Medium Term Service & Financial Plan)  

420.404 26.950 

 
Grant income carried forward from 2008/09 
 
New grants & changes to 2009/10 allocations 
previously reported (as per February 2010  
Financial Monitoring report) 

 
9.17410 

 
18.119 

 
 
 

0.108 

 
Changes to 2009/10 grant allocations not 
previously reported but included at Outturn 

 
5.399 

 

 

Total Grant funding available for 2009/10 453.096 27.058 
2009/10 Grant Expenditure  443.487 25.577 
Balance remaining at 31 March 2010 9.609 1.481 

 
Specific Grants 

42. Receipts in advance totalling £10.662m were raised and included £5.569m 
relating to Standards Fund grant within CYP&F.  In S&CS £0.837m related 
to Supporting People grant and £1.148m was Social Care Reform Grant.   
The funding has been carried forward to be used in 2010/11. 

 
43. £2.101m Dedicated Schools Grant was used to support the overall CYP&F 

position.   
 

Area Based Grant 
44. The variation of £1.481m related to CYP&F, where £0.188m was 

requested to be carried forward to meet commitments relating to 
Connexions in 2010/11.  The take up of Extended Rights to Free Travel 
was much lower than expected and £0.319m was used to support the 
overall Directorate position along with £0.848m of School Development 
Grant.    

 

                                                 
10 £8.710m reported at 2008/09 year end and throughout 2009/10.  CYP&F total increased by 
£0.464m at outturn to match corrected position.  

Page 24



SYP7 

 

 

 

Savings 
45. The table below shows the total budgeted savings for each Directorate and 

compares this to the actual outturn.   The final position on savings which 
can be classed as Value for Money (VfM) will be reported to Communities 
and Local Government (CLG) in July 2010.    Whilst the savings are shown 
in isolation here they are also included in the overall position reported and 
need to be considered in that context.   

 
Directorate Total 

Budgeted 
Saving            

Actual 
Saving           

Variation to 
Budgeted 

Saving 
 £m £m £m 
CYP&F -2.955 -2.335 0.620 
S&CS -11.050 -10.101 0.949 
E&E -5.224 -5.427 -0.203 
CS&SS -0.885 -0.885 0.000 
Corporate Core -1.512 -0.874 0.638 
TOTAL -21.626 -19.622 2.004 

 
46. CYP&F achieved savings of £2.335m.  £0.304m of the shortfall related to 

savings to be made as a result of the directorate restructuring and 
unrealised planned savings of £0.181m from DSG funded services. 

 
47. S&CS made savings of £10.101m.  The £0.949m shortfall relates to 

savings within Adult Social Care which were delayed or proved 
unachievable.  

 
48. E&E achieved -£0.203m more savings than budgeted largely due to 

additional savings relating to Waste Management.  
 
49. The £0.885m savings target for CS&SS was achieved in full.  Of this 

£0.773m related to Shared Services savings and represented the balance 
of the business case target of £4.5m. 

 
50. Within Corporate Core ICT achieved an efficiency saving of £0.243m from 

a target of £0.881m resulting in a shortfall of £0.638m.    
 
Part – 2 Consolidated Provisional Capital Outturn  

 
Summary Programme Expenditure 

51. The capital programme is updated three times each year.  The original 
programme for the year is agreed by Council in the February preceding the 
start of the financial year as part of the MTFP (February 2009). This was 
based on the position forecast at the end of December 2008. The latest 
programme, based on the position forecast at the end of December 2009, 
was agreed by Council on 9 February 2010.  This will be updated again as 
at the end of July 2010 for monitoring in 2010/11. 

 
52. The summary outturn position compared to both the original and latest 

capital programme and also the latest position forecast at the end of 
February 2010 is shown in the following table. 

Page 25



SYP7 

 

 

 

 
Directorate Original 

Capital 
Prog 
(Feb 
2009 

Council) 

Latest 
Capital 
Prog 
(Feb 
2010 

Council) 

Latest 
Forecast 
Position 

(April 
2010 

Cabinet) 

 Actual 
Spend 

2009/10 

 Variation to 
Original 
Capital 

Programme 

Variation to 
Latest 
Capital 

Programme 

Variation to 
February 
Forecast 

 £m 
 

£m £m  £m  £m % £m % £m % 

CYP&F 38.5 38.8 38.0  35.6  -2.9 -7 -3.2 -8 -2.4 -6 
S&CS 7.9 6.0 5.4  5.0  -2.9 -37 -1.0 -17 -0.4 -7 
E&E – Transport 26.4 24.8 23.4  23.1  -3.3 -13 -1.7 -7 -0.3 -2 
E&E– Other 15.1 16.3 15.7  15.0  -0.1 -1 -1.3 -8 -0.7 -4 
CS&SS 0.3 1.0 0.7  0.7  +0.4 178 -0.3 -32 0.0 -4 
Corporate Core 1.0 2.9 2.9  2.9  +1.9 100 0.0 0 0.0 0 

Directorate Total 89.2 89.8 86.1  82.3  -6.9 -8 -7.5 -8 -3.8 -4 
             

Schools Capital 11.2 12.1 12.1  11.7  0.5 4 -0.4 -3 -0.4 -3 
             

Total Capital 
Programme 
Expenditure 

100.4 101.9 98.2  94.0  -6.4 -6 -7.9 -8 -4.2 -4 

             

Other adjustments11 1.7 2.0 2.0  6.8        
             

Total Capital 
Expenditure 102.1 103.9 100.2  100.8        

 
53. Total capital programme expenditure for 2009/10 was £94.0m and the 

variation between the original programme (February 2009 Council) and the 
final outturn was -£6.4m. This represents 94% use of resources compared 
to the original capital programme and compares favourably to the outturn 
position in 2008/09 where the use of resources was 90% and the 82% 
achieved in 2007/08. 

 
 Children, Young People & Families 
54. Total capital expenditure was £35.6m (excluding schools local capital 

expenditure of £11.7m), a variation of -£2.9m or -7% compared to the 
original capital programme.  The main changes relate to re profiling of 
projects/ programmes. 

 
Social & Community Services 

55. Total capital expenditure for the year was £5.0m.  The variation compared 
to the original Capital Programme was a reduction of -£2.9m or -37%.  
This was due to delays on several projects. 

 
Environment & Economy - Transport 

56. Total capital expenditure was £23.1m.  This was £3.3m or 13% less than 
the original Capital Programme.  This reflects a £4.7m or 35% reduction on 
the Integrated Transport Strategy (ITS) element of the programme offset 
by an increase in the Highways Maintenance programme of £1.0m or 8%. 

 

                                                 
11 Year end accounting adjustments 

Page 26



SYP7 

 

 

 

 
Environment & Economy - Other 

57. Total capital expenditure was £14.9m.  The variation compared to the 
original Capital Programme was a reduction of £0.1m or 1%.   The main 
changes to the original programme for 2009/10 were a reduction of £0.8m 
on the clearance on fly tipped waste at Redbridge Hollow due to a 
significantly lower tender price than anticipated. This was offset by the 
inclusion of an additional £1m of accelerated funding for Backlog 
Maintenance. 

 
Community Safety & Shared Services 

58. Total capital expenditure was £0.7m.   The main changes to the original 
programme for 2009/10 were the inclusion of Safer Stronger Communities 
Grant (£0.2m), which is passed over to district councils, and the school 
kitchen & dining improvement programme (£0.4m). The funding for these 
two schemes was not announced until after the original programme was 
set.  The variation to the latest programme at year end was due to the re-
profiling of some minor projects to 2010/11.  

 
Corporate Core 

59. Total capital expenditure was £2.9m.  This was £1.9m higher than 
originally planned due to the early repayment of SAP and associated 
software licences, which was brought into the capital programme part way 
through the year.  

 

 

Part 3 – Balance Sheet 
 

General Balances 
60. The provisional outturn position for general balances was £11.145m (after 

the planned City Schools overspend) as at 31 March 2010.  In addition 
£1.009m of the first instalment of Performance Reward Grant was held 
within balances at the end of 2009/10. 

 
61. As part of the 2010/11 budget agreed by Council on 9 February 2010 

£1.975m was added to balances in 2010/11 to bring the £10.5m estimated 
balance at 31 March 2010 back to the risk assessed level of £12.5m.  The 
position at 1 April 2010 was £12.154m.  This included £1.0m Local Area 
Agreement (LAA) Performance Reward Grant (PRG) and £0.6m of 
additional balances as set out in full in paragraphs 76 and 119 to 122 of 
the Provisional Outturn Report to Cabinet. 
 
Earmarked Reserves 

62. Reserves totalled £60.766m as at 31 March 2010.   Of this £14.327m 
related to CYP&F and included school balances.    £31.967m related to 
corporate reserves. 
  

63. Details of the movements on earmarked reserves in 2009/10 are 
summarised in the table below: 

 

Page 27



SYP7 

 

 

 

 
 2009/10 
 Balance  

1 April 
2009 

Forecast Movement Balance 
31 March 
2010 

 Contributions 
From Reserve 

Contributions 
To Reserve 

 £m £m £m £m 
CYP&F 15.049 -12.786 12.064 14.327 
S&CS 2.739 -1.635 0.590 1.694 
E&E 3.878 -1.759 3.497 5.616 
CS&SS 4.502 -5.773 5.304 4.033 
Corporate Core 4.872 -2.001 0.258 3.129 
Corporate 21.305 -7.305 17.965 31.965 
Total 52.345 -31.529 39.678 60.764 

 
Corporate Reserves 

64. As agreed by Council in February 2009 a new reserve was created from 
2009/10 for Local Authority Business Growth Incentive (LABGI) funding.   
After taking account of funding unused at the end of 2009/10, which was 
transferred back to the reserve, the total balance as at 31 March 2010 was 
£0.791m.     

 
65. At the end of 2008/09 balances were £1.187m higher than the risk 

assessed level.  The surplus was agreed to be transferred to a new 
Efficiency Savings Reserve to contribute to future efficiency savings or to 
fund costs associated with those savings.   During 2009/10 a further 
£0.694m relating to excess Green Book and Chief Officer pay inflation was 
removed from Directorate budgets and added to this reserve.   £0.362m 
was used during 2009/10 to fund redundancy costs in ICT.   The balance 
as at 31 March 2010 was £1.519m. 

 
School Balances 

66. School balances reduced by £2.364m to £10.962m at 31 March 2010.  
This reduction was less than previously forecast but the use of SAP from 1 
April 2010 will provide more accurate information for 2010/11. 

 
 Balances as at 

31 March 
2009 

Movement Balances as at 31 
March 2010 

 £m £m £m 
Primary Schools 8.873 -1.547 7.326 
Secondary Schools 2.414 -0.195 2.219 
Special Schools 1.769 -0.622 1.147 
TOTAL 
 

13.056 -2.364 10.692 

 
 
 
 

Page 28



SYP7 

 

 

 

Change Fund 
68. Sixteen projects were financed from the Change Fund in 2009/10 with 

drawdowns totalling £0.602m and a further £1.241m of the remaining 
£1.259m balance is committed to these projects for 2010/11 onwards.       

 
 
Conclusion 
 
69. The outturn position for 2009/10 again demonstrates the strong financial 

management in the authority with an overspend predicted earlier in the 
year transformed into a small underspend equivalent to around 0.5% of the 
total budget.  The overall position on balances and reserves also indicates 
the authority was in a strong position at 31 March 2010.  However, cuts in 
2010/11 and beyond will pose a significant challenge in the face of 
ongoing pressures particularly in Children’s Services and Adult Social 
Care. 

 
Councillor Jim Couchman 

Cabinet Member for Finance 
 

July 2010 

Page 29



ANNEX 1 

 

 
Annex 1 to the PROVISIONAL REVENUE OUTTURN 2009/10          

CABINET 22 June 2010             
  BUDGET 2009/10  OUTTURN  Analysis of variation Proposed 

    Original  Brought Virements  Supplementary Latest  Provisional Variation   Returned This  Carry 
    Budget Forward to Date Estimates Estimate  Outturn to Final  to Directorate Forward to 

Budget 
Book 
Ref 

Service Area   from   to Date    

(Actual per 
SAP) 

Budget  Council   2010/11 
    2008/09             (*) (**) 

    Surplus +        
underspend 

-  underspend - underspend - Surplus - 

      Deficit -          
overspend 

+  overspend + overspend + Deficit + 
    £0 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)  (8) (9)  (10) (11) (12) 

                          
  Children, Young People & Families                       
  Gross Expenditure 502,002 -867 14,505 300 515,940  571,181 55,241  0 55,241 

    Income 
-

403,725 0 -15,142 215 -418,652  -473,893 -55,241  0 -55,241 
  Net Expenditure 98,277 -867 -637 515 97,288  97,288 0   0 0 0 
                          
  Social and Community Services                       
  Gross Expenditure 212,820 1,094 -1,363 0 212,551  217,619 5,068  0 5,068   
  Income -46,394 0 614 0 -45,780  -50,112 -4,332  0 -4,332   
  Net Expenditure 166,426 1,094 -749 0 166,771  167,507 736  0 736 736 
                          
  Supporting People                       

  Gross Expenditure 12,571 0 125 0 12,696  13,352 656  0 656   

  Income -12,197 0 -125 0 -12,322  -12,978 -656  0 -656   
  Net Expenditure 374 0 0 0 374  374 0  0 0 0 
                          
  Environment & Economy                       
  Gross Expenditure 98,435 966 1,710 1,060 102,171  103,301 1,130  115 1,015   
  Income -29,804 0 -1,138 0 -30,942  -32,363 -1,421  0 -1,421   
  Net Expenditure 68,631 966 572 1,060 71,229  70,938 -291  115 -406 -406 
                          
  Community Safety & Shared Services                       
  Gross Expenditure 54,024 820 417 0 55,261   57,858 2,597  167 2,430   
  Income -24,116 0 -547 0 -24,663   -27,898 -3,235  0 -3,235   
  Net Expenditure 29,908 820 -130 0 30,598  29,960 -638  167 -805 -805 
                          
  Corporate Core                       
  Gross Expenditure 35,212 415 -149 2,310 37,788  44,371 6,583  -220 6,803   
  Income -25,786 0 574 0 -25,212  -32,586 -7,374  0 -7,374   
  Net Expenditure 9,426 415 425 2,310 12,576  11,785 -791  -220 -571 -571 

P
age 30



SYP7 

 

 

 

Annex 1 to the PROVISIONAL REVENUE OUTTURN 2009/10          

CABINET 22 June 2010             
  BUDGET 2009/10  OUTTURN  Analysis of variation Proposed 

    Original  Brought Virements  Supplementary Latest  Provisional Variation   Returned This  Carry 
    Budget Forward to Date Estimates Estimate  Outturn to Final  to Directorate Forward to 

Budget 
Book 
Ref 

Service Area   from   to Date    

(Actual per 
SAP) 

Budget  Council   2010/11 
    2008/09             (*) (**) 

    Surplus +        
underspend 

-  underspend - underspend - Surplus - 

      Deficit -          
overspend 

+  overspend + overspend + Deficit + 
    £0 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)  (8) (9)  (10) (11) (12) 

  Less recharges to other Directorates -61,489       -61,489  -61,489 0    0   
    61,489       61,489  61,489 0    0   
                          
  Directorate Expenditure Total 853,575 2,428 15,245 3,670 874,918  946,193 71,275   62 71,213   

  Directorate Income Total 
-

480,533 0 -15,764 215 -496,082  -568,341 -72,259   0 -72,259   
  Directorate Total Net 373,042 2,428 -519 3,885 378,836  377,852 -984   62 -1,046 -1,046 
              
   Less: City Schools Reorganisation    -775     

   In-Year Directorate Variation   377,852 -1,759     
              
              
  Contributions to/from Reserves 3,432 -2,428 693   1,697  4,413 2,716     
  Contribution to/from Balances -5,131    -3,885 -9,016  -5,111 3,905     
  Capital Financing  35,811     35,811  35,828 17     
  Interest on Balances -1,034   -65   -1,099  -1,809 -710     
  Strategic Measure Budget 33,078 -2,428 628 -3,885 27,393  33,321 5,928     
  Area Based Grant (income) -26,950   -109   -27,059  -27,059 0     
  Budget Requirement 379,170 0 0 0 379,170  384,114 4,944     
              
 Increase/(decrease) in County Fund             -2,488      
 * This is a combined position as any Directorate over or under spend at the year-end          
 has been included in the County Fund Balance             
 Combined position - Budget Requirement and movement on County Fund Balance     381,626      
              
 Total External Financing to meet Budget Requirement           
  Revenue Support Grant 19,657       19,657  19,657 0     
  Business rates 85,163     85,163  85,163 0     
  Council Tax 274,350     274,350  274,350 0     
  Other Income (e.g. LAA, PRG, LABGI)         0  2,456 2,456     
  External Financing 379,170 0 0 0 379,170  381,626 2,456     

P
age 31



SYP7 

 

 

 

 

P
age 32



SYPJUL2210R020.doc 

STRATEGY & PARTNERSHIPS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
22 JULY 2010 

 
OXFORDSHIRE’S THEMATIC PARTNERSHIPS : REVIEW OF 

PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE 
 
Background 

 
1. Last year we put new partnership governance arrangements in place. We are 

now reviewing whether these are effective and assessing strengths, areas for 
improvement and what the change of government might mean for 
partnerships. Scrutiny wishes to be involved in this work.  
 

2. Overall we have created the conditions for people to work together on shared 
priorities. However joint working is not easy and there will always be areas 
where things are not going as well as we would like. The schedule attached 
identifies the issues which are being addressed.  
 
Key issues 
 

3. It is likely that the government will (in time) modify the statutory framework for 
partnerships. Currently we are obliged to have a local strategic partnership, a 
Children’s Trust and partnership for safer communities.  

 
4. At this stage it is difficult to anticipate how the Government will seek to 

change the nature of partnership working although the following are possible : 
 

• More local choice about what partnerships are required (regionally and 
locally) to get things done in the county. 

• Changes to the economic development functions with the removal of the 
regional development agency (SEEDA) and creation of new Local 
Enterprise Partnerships. 

• Local Area Agreements to be abandoned after 2010/11. 
• Possibly some form of ‘Total Place’ initiative requiring partnership working 
to secure joined up action and pooling/rationalisation of resources at a 
local level.  

• Health White Paper proposals to move public health responsibility to local 
councils and strengthen the role of the Health and Well-being partnership. 

 
 
Paul James 
Head of Partnership Working  
 
July 2010 
 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 33



SYP8a 
 
 

SYPJUL2210R020.doc 

 

Children’s Trust 
Performance  Response 
Outcomes 
• 17 LAA targets of which (at Q3 2009/10) 2 are 
on track, 7 are not on track, and items not on 
track subject of action within CYP&F. There are 
8 targets  where we do not currently have 
enough to make a judgement. Targets linked to 
safer communities have performed well (youth 
justice system) 

• GCSE attainment target missed but 
performance has improved in the last year.  
Compared to others our performance is at the 
national average. 

• Safeguarding –  Increased caseload during the 
year to protect children at risk. Some 
improvement in procedures required. 

• New Children & Young People’s Plan in place 
with plans for partners monitoring. 

• Breaking the Cycle of Deprivation project 
making progress.  

Partnership working 
• Issues about partner engagement to be 
addressed 

• New statutory guidance for Children’s Trust 
Boards now being implemented. 

 

 
• Informal Cabinet updated on 
performance off target 

 
 
 
 
 
• Class of 2010 project, results of 
GCSE’s Aug 2010. 

 
 
• Trust, Safeguarding Board and 
CYP&F working on continuous 
improvement. 

 
 
 
 
 
• New Director committed to 
improving engagement within 
OCC and with partners. 

• Trust has proposals for statutory 
guidance and partner attendance 
is being addressed. 

Oxfordshire Economic Partnership 
Performance  Response 
Outcomes 
• Good response to recession – e.g: jobs clubs. 
• More ownership and action required on ‘deprivation’ 
issues e.g. low end skills/NEETs 

• 3 LAA targets of which (at Q4 2009/10) 1 is on track to 
meet target, and 2 where we do not currently have 
enough to make a judgement (problems with data quality 
which are being addressed).  

• Economic Assessment progressing (led by OCC). 
• Skills strategy needed. 
• Uncertainty of future economic development role with 
abolition of SEEDA. 

Partnership working 
• New Govt arrangements for economic development likely 
to require changes during 2010/11 

• Learning & Skills : Relationship with/ support for Learning 
& Skills Partnership needs development.  

 
 
• Jan Paine leading work 
in this area 

 
 
 
 
 
• Skills strategy work 
underway. 

 
 
• David Robertson 
appointed as Vice 
Chairman of the Board 
to strengthen local 
authority input/influence 

• Joanna Simons active 
involvement  

Page 34



SYP8a 
 
 

SYPJUL2210R020.doc 

Environment and Waste Partnership  
Outcomes 
• Good performance on waste generally. 
• 7 LAA targets of which (at Q4 2009/10) 6 on track and 1 
with not enough information to make a judgement (data 
quality problem). 

• Less attention given to climate change/ carbon 
management and wider environmental concerns. 

 
Partnership Working  
• Good partnership arrangements on waste but weaker 
engagement on environment / climate change.  

 

 
• Problems with data 
quality being addressed. 

 
 
• Partnership being 
challenged to address 
carbon management  

 
 
• Chairmanship coming to 
OCC in June. 

• Review environment 
representation. 

Health and Well-being partnership 
Performance  Response  
Outcomes 
• Good performance with 5 LAA targets of which (at Q3 
2009/10) 1 is off track, 3 on track and 1 where we do not 
currently have enough to make a judgement. 

• Performance on delayed transfers has improved by 20%. 
• Attention turning to ageing population strategy agreed 
but needs to be implemented. 

Partnership Working  
• Strong NHS/OCC partnership with successful pooled 
funding arrangements 

• Working with Districts is improving as all partners 
recognise their importance for the health and well being 
agenda.  Three Districts have produced own health 
strategies. 

• ‘Creating a Healthy Oxfordshire’ programme underway. 
• Partnership has not really addressed wider 
thriving/stronger communities agenda.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• Broaden the role around 
thriving communities? 

Safer Communities Partnership 
Performance  Response  
Outcomes 
• Good performance on 5 LAA targets (at Q3 2009/10) 4 
are on target, with 1 where we do not currently have 
enough information to make a judgement. 

• Crime statistics positive but fear of crime still high. 
• Anti social behaviour (proxy data) still perceived to be a 
problem. 

• No overarching countywide strategy/priorities for 
community safety (left to district CDRPs). 

Partnership Working 
• More attention to best use of resources needed i.e. 
reducing administration and increasing resources for 
sharp end activities  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• OCC will promote the 
need for a countywide 
strategy during 2010/11 

Page 35



SYP8a 
 
 

SYPJUL2210R020.doc 

 

Spatial Planning & Infrastructure Partnership 
Performance  Response  
Outcomes 
• Single Conversation work has been challenging but 
progressing well despite resource limitations for delivery. 
Local Investment Plan agreed. 

• Focus on wider spatial planning issues inevitably limited 
in 2009/10. 

• 5 LAA targets of which (at Q3 2009/10) 2 on track, and 3 
will not be achieved (however, these have been subject 
to renegotiation with GOSE). 

Partnership Working  
• A new partnership which has developed well  
• May be subject to change in response to government 
guidance on Local Enterprise Partnerships. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Oxfordshire Stronger Communities Alliance 
Performance  Response 
Outcomes 
• Good performance on LAA volunteering target. 
• OSCA Strategy 2011 onwards under review . 
Partnership working 
• Has only been meeting as OSCA since 2009. Useful 
VCS engagement/ sector collaboration . 

• Scope for closer working between infrastructure 
organisations (such as the OCVA and ORCC) and public 
sector leaders. 

• Attention turning to issues around thriving communities 
as part of revised strategy eg. Community Self help / 
Community Pride. 

• More attention needed on how OSCA works with and 
challenges other thematic partnerships on thriving 
communities  

 
 
 
 
• Revised strategy needs 
to pick up wider role and 
better engagement 
between the sector and 
key public sector 
partners in particular. 

 
 

Page 36


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Shared Services Programme - Completion
	7 Financial Monitoring 2010/11 - Quarter 1
	8a Oxfordshire's Thematic Partnerships: Review of Performance and Governance

